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(4) additional attendees
PRESS:

Akaku: Maui Community Television, Inc.

CHAIR SUGIMURA: . .(gavel). . . Good morning, everyone. Today is September 11, 2018.
The time is 9:35. Welcome, everybody, to the Policy, Economic Development,
Agriculture Committee. Today, we are going to be taking up our CPAC nominations,
but before I do, I just wanted to give a little moment of silence. Today is
September 11th and as I was coming to work this morning, I started reflecting on what
a significant day this is in the lives of our history of the United States of America. So I
just wanted to if I could just a moment of silence for those that gave their lives for our
freedom and to remember those that have passed.
. .(moment of silence). . .
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Welcome, everybody. My name is Yuki Lei Sugimura. I am
the Chair of this Committee. Thank you very much. I have Stacy Crivello from
Molokai, she is the Vice-Chair. Thanks for being here.
VICE-CHAIR CRIVELLO: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Aloha. Elle Cochran from West Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Good morning, Chair. Chair, I just got a text that Akaku
doesn't have audio right now. Is that the case?
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Can you check? Let me take a brief recess.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Can we recess for a second? Thank you.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:

9:36 a.m.

RECONVENE: 9:38 a.m.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: . . .(gavel). . . Meeting is called back to order. Akaku is good. Members
in the Chamber, this is what we go through because we want to make sure that people
that take the time to listen, you know, can get the full story here. So, thank you for
your patience. Thank you also for waiting until we could begin. At this time I'd like to
continue on with our Members. Elle Cochran from West Maui. Don Guzman is here.
Thank you. Kelly King.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Good morning.
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CHAIR SUGIMURA: Good morning. Excused is Robert Carroll, Alika Atay, Mike White, and
Riki Hokama from the meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair, excuse me. I just got another...a text that they still can't
hear. Somebody is texting me from their home trying to listen.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Okay, thank you. You want to check? Recess. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:

9:38 a.m.

RECONVENE: 9:45 a.m.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: . . .(gavel). . . I'm calling the Policy, Economic Development, Agriculture
Committee back to order. We are having problems with Akaku so I apologize for any
delay. From the Administration we have with us Joe Alueta, he's the Deputy Director
of the Department of Planning who manages the community plans. We also have in
the audience Joseph Aquino, Yvette Joyce Celiz, Karen Comcowich, Donald Robert
Gerbig, Dawn Hegger-Nordblom, Paul Laub, Michele Lincoln, Rick Medina [sic], Kai
Nishiki, Dylan Payne, Joseph Pluta, Leilani Pulmano, Leo Joseph Thiner-Brickey. I
guess that's who we invited, I'm not too sure who here's today. We will find out. From
Corp. Counsel we have -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair? Sorry.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: --our Deputy Corp. Counsel Edward Kushi. From my Staff...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I think Rick...not Rick Medina, Rick Nava, yeah?
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Oh, did I say Medina?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I was like Medina? Wait, he doesn't live in Lahaina.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Rick Nava.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I think it would be Rick Nava probably. Thank you.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Okay. I apologize for that. Rick Medina is in my thoughts I guess.
Staff, I have Legislative Analyst Shelly Espeleta, Committee Secretary Clarita Balala,
and then we have our Hana District Offices who are online, Dawn Lono from Hana,
Lanai we have Denise Fernandez, and Molokai, Ella Alcon. Everybody, thank you for
being here. I only have one item on my agenda today, hoping that we can get through
this process to establish the West Maui Community Plan Advisory Committee. As you
know, this happens every ten years or so depending on how fast we can go through
our community plans. I also have agendized in today's meeting a possible executive
meeting pursuant to Section 95-5...92-5(a)(2), Hawaii Revised Statutes, to consider the
hire, evaluation, dismissal, or discipline of an officer of...or an employee of the charges
brought against the officer of [sic] employee, where consideration of matters affecting
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privacy which probably involves this more will be involved; provided that if the
individual concerned requests an open meeting, an open meeting shall be held. As
much as possible in today's discussion will occur in an open meeting. Corp. Counsel
which is Mr. Kushi here will advise us if he feels that we should go into executive
session. With that I would like to start public testimony, and these are not the
candidates that have signed up to apply. Do we have anybody signed up, Clarita, for
public testimony?
MS. BALALA: No testifiers.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: We have no nobody in the Chambers. Okay. District Offices, Dawn
Lono, do you have anybody there in your office to testify?
MS. LONO: Good morning, Chair. This is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office and there is no one
waiting to testify.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Okay, thank you. Lanai District Office, Denise Fernandez, is there
anybody there to testify?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good morning, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez on Lanai and there is no
one waiting to testify.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Molokai District Office, Ella Alcon, is there anybody there to
testify?
MS. ALCON: Good morning, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai and there's no one here
waiting to testify.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: And there's nobody in the Chambers. So, with that, Members, I'm going
to ask that we close public testimony.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Oh, we have a public...we have a testifier. Okay.

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. . .
MR. PEREZ: Good morning, Councilmembers.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Good morning, Mr. Perez.
MR. PEREZ: Good morning. Sorry, I just walked in. I just wanted to talk about the West
Maui Community Plan, the CACs, and some things that we should be looking for in
people who are going to serve that are important. So, I'd just like to say that obviously
everyone who has applied really wants to do this, that should go without saying and
that should be appreciated. I think the main thing is attendance and we have had
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examples, I don't need to go into detail but when people don't attend there's several
problems. One, you might not make quorum, the other one is if they've missed a
couple meetings, then they have to be caught up. So, people who are willing to serve
is great but it should be just more than their intention, they should know that they
have the ability to come. They should be good listeners. They should be fair-minded.
And it's very important that they have a good understanding of the planning process.
So, several of our people who have applied have been attending the West Maui
Community Plan workshops and so they have a good head start. If you don't have a
good understanding of the planning process, then it'll be tough to make a good
contribution. And that's all I have to say, so thank you.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Anybody have any questions for Mr. Perez? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And good morning, Mr. Perez. Thank
you for being here.
MR. PEREZ: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Mr. Perez, you mentioned just now that a few applicants
have been attending the Planning Committee workshops. Do you know in particular
who they are offhand?
MR. PEREZ: I can only name one actually and that would be... sorry, I'm blanking on your
first name but it's Ms. Hegger-Nordblom. Is it Dawn?
MS. HEGGER-NORDBLOM: Dawn.
MR. PEREZ: Dawn. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Dawn. Thank you.
MR. PEREZ: She's been there and she's also a professional planner. So, I think she would
be a great person to put on there. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Any other questions for Mr. Perez? Thank you for being
here.
MR. PEREZ: Thank you.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: So, anybody else would like to testify? Seeing none, I would like to close
public testimony, Members.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. . .
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CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. We also received some written testimony so I want to make
sure that that gets into our system too.

PEA-75

ESTABLISHING THE WEST MAUI COMMUNITY PLAN
ADVISORY COMMITTEE (CC 18-134)

CHAIR SUGIMURA: Today, the one item we have on our agenda is PEA-75, Establishing the
Maui County [sic] Plan Advisory Committee. And the purpose of the meeting is to go
over the appointments to the West Maui Community Plan Advisory Committee, and
the proposed resolution is to approve or disapprove applicants for the nine
Council-appointed positions for the West Maui Community Plan Advisory Committee.
The Committee received timely applications for the positions from the people that I
mentioned earlier in the meeting. The West Maui Community Plan Advisory
Committee shall remain in existence until the enactment of an ordinance adopting the
decennial revisions to the West Maui Community Plan. The Committee may discuss
the West Maui Community Plan Advisory Committee selection process, consider
whether to recommend adoption of the proposed resolution with or without revisions,
and the Committee may also consider the filing of County Communication 18-134 and
other related actions. Thank you, Members. Before we started I want to get into some
background which what got us here today. And on June 1, 2018, the, my Committee
sent out a press release which all of you have gotten a copy of, as well as you received
a copy of the application informational sheet that was given to the nominees to fill out.
So, this is in your possession, Members. The press release was released and printed
and published in The Maui News, Lahaina News which I'm very grateful to be in the
community that the applicants would come from. And it was also posted on the
mauicounty.us website which is ours, the Planning Department's wearemaui.org
website which is what the Planning Department uses for communication for the
community plans, it's very effective, and also the We Are Maui Facebook page. So, we
tried our best to get the information out to people that we thought would be interested
in applying and we did get response so I'm grateful for that. There were 15 applicants
from the West Side which as you know there are nine slots so this became competitive.
Committee, we received after the month-long recruitment which ended July 6, 2018 at
4:30 deadline, we received all the applications that are before you. We also gave you a
copy of the Maui County Code that this applies to. Members, you have a copy of that
which is pursuant to Section 2.80B.080, we are to select 9 of the 13 members which
will be appointed by the Council, nine of them will. And then four will be appointed by
the Mayor. Earlier somebody asked me if this is related to the Mayor's appointments
and just so you know, the Council, our selection is completely separate, we do not give
our names to the Mayor. So, they have their own process going. And all of the
application forms that were from people that applied, Members, you can find it in our
internal system called Granicus, and you can look at the different applications of the
people who have taken the time to apply. The Council and the Mayor in determining
the makeup of the committee shall strive for diversity, balance of age, gender,
background, profession, heritage, experience, ideology of all CPAC participants, and
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while experience in land use planning is helpful, it is not required.
Other
requirements...of the requirements listed, the applicants must reside in West Maui,
the community plan area, which includes Ukumehame to Honokohau. And perhaps
what is more important is a desire to invest a significant amount of time in attending
meetings, in addition to reading and analyzing the topics to be discussed. Members,
this is a huge time commitment from the community, and I want all of you to know in
advance that we appreciate the time that you have taken so far to apply as well as
what is ahead. The Maui County Code also states the CPAC shall hold at least seven
public workshops at a time and locations convenient to the general public to allow
public participation in the process.
The expected timeframe is to be from
January 2019 to June 2019. According to the Planning Department, there can be as
many as 25 meetings of which three hours...would last three hours long as well as the
prep time. So, this is a huge time commitment. The CPAC will have 180 days to
forward its recommendation...recommended revisions to the Planning Director.
Additionally, the CPAC does not dissolve until the updated West Maui Community
Plan is enacted by Council. So, your commitment is longer than the six-month period.
The existing West Maui Community Plan was adopted in 1996. Now, let's go through
the process. That's background of history of where...what got us here. Because we
have more candidates than we have seats, I've asked for candidates to come and
participate in this process. What was...with that being said, the Chair intends to take
up all candidates who are here today to come up, one by one, in alphabetical order, to
tell us a little about your background, why you're interested in serving the West Maui
Community Plan to be on their C...to be on the CPAC. And then we'll open it up to the
Members to ask questions. And please, Members, when asking questions of each
candidate to keep the line of questioning pertinent to West Maui CPAC and the
candidate's background, knowledge, and experience to serve. It is important to know
that all the candidates that have applied by the applicable deadline, there is no other
list to work from. This is the list of the members that you...that is before us on our
agenda. These are the people who have taken the time to apply by the application
deadline. And so I'm going to be taking up those names to be considered by the
Council for the nine members to participate in the CPAC. The Code does not specify
the process for naming the nine Councilmembers...nine Council-appointed positions,
for that reason I chose to proceed with vetting all candidates first so each Member can
ask their questions which is fair. After all candidates are interviewed, I will share with
the Members the selection process and the Chair will recommend how we follow. And
because this is a Council process, I'm going to ask the Department which is Joe Alueta
at the appropriate time to maybe make some comments. You also have submitted for
us, Members, which you have in your possession, the Planning Department has given
us We Are Maui frequently asked questions to CPAC members so you can use this as a
guideline. As well as the community planning process handbook was given to you for
additional information and that would be shared with the Members. So, at this time if
I could get a statement from Corp. Counsel, Joe...I'm sorry, from Planning
Department, Joe Alueta. Would you like to say a few words regarding this, importance
of this positions and any statements you would like to share?
MR. ALUETA: Thank you, Madam Chair. I think I would echo some of the things that other
people have said. This is a very...can be a time-intensive task. We've had other
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community plan or GPAC [sic] sessions go as I said 25 meetings going at three hours a
piece. It doesn't have to be that way if you are decisive, meaning you take into
account all the information that is available to you at this time and vote on it. If you
get into as you see in other places somewhat of a filibuster because you're not getting
your way, then the process will be extended and become more muddied. So, it's
important for you to be open-minded and to...when you have a tough decision to
make, make the vote and see where things go, and move on to the next item you need
to take on as you go through the process of the GPAC [sic]. But again, if you do miss a
meeting, it's very important for you catch up as indicated by one of the testifiers that
you read the documents or read the testimony or any information that was taken in at
any meetings you participate in. Again, we really appreciate your time and service to
the community. The Planning Department is anticipating, start this up again in
January or if not, as late as February with regards to when you'll be seated and start
the work. But again, we appreciate it and hopefully we'll have a good process. And
the Department has a lot of resources available. As indicated, the We Are Maui
website is key to not only helping you get information but as well as the community to
be more informed so when you do have your meetings, we hope they will be more
efficient as well as people will have good information to begin with. Thank you,
Madam Chair.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you, Mr. Alueta. Mr. Kushi, would you like to say anything
before we begin?
MR. KUSHI: Yes, Madam Chair. It just occurred to me looking at the spreadsheet of the
applicants, pursuant to the Charter Section 13-2, subparagraph 2, says not more
than a bare majority of the members of any board or commission shall belong to the
same political party. I note that majority of the applicants here checked off either
Democrat or Republican, there's some independents. Couple of them stated NA, not
applicable. I would urge the commission...I mean this Council before it gets to a
problem to have them declare...not applicable, it's either you're Republican, Democrat
or Independent or Green Party. I remind, deplorable is not a party yet. So, but and
we have no idea what the Mayor's appointees are. So, again, before we get into it and
finalize your list, I want to make sure that you are on...in abidance by the Charter.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Chair, a question.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you very much, Mr. Kushi. Anybody have a question for him?
Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Mr. Kushi, for bringing that up.
So, since there's a total of 13 that are going to be appointed to the CPAC that means
that no more than six can be affiliated with... as a Democrat, is that...
MR. KUSHI: Seven.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Seven is a majority though, you said you can't have a majority?
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MR. KUSHI: Not more than six.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Oh, you can't have more than a majority but you can have a
majority?
MR. KUSHI: Not more than a bare majority.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Bare majority. Okay, so seven is the maximum. So, if we appoint
seven Democrats that leaves no Democrats for the Mayor to appoint. Is that...
MR. KUSHI: I think the Mayor appoints . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER JUNG: Okay. So, when is the Mayor planning to do his appointments so
we know what our restrictions are?
MR. KUSHI: . . . (inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Oh, okay. But...
CHAIR SUGIMURA: So, we don't...we'll take care of what we need to do -COUNCILMEMBER KING: Right. But our...
CHAIR SUGIMURA: --is what I'm hearing.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: But this is a total, Chair, so this...what we do is going to affect
what the Mayor can or cannot do. What the Mayor...if the Mayor is doing something
right now to appointments we need to know about it because it's going to affect what
we do. So, that's why I'm trying to ask this question.
VICE-CHAIR CRIVELLO: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: And the other question, so assuming we don't know if the Mayor
is appointing right now or not, the other question is what constitutes residency
legally?
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Mr. Kushi?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: And can you turn your mic on?
MR. KUSHI: Residency?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah, can you turn your mic on? Thank you.
MR. KUSHI: That issue is, it's a legal one. You can be a resident of Maui, of California,
et cetera, but you have only one domicile. Domicile means the place you reside and
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intend to reside and intend to return. So, the language in the Charter or the
ordinance is residency.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. So, resident of West Maui, is that...does that mean you
have to have an address or does that mean you have to have a...you also have to have
a tax return, you have to be...
MR. KUSHI: That would show proof of residency.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: It's just an address, is that the bare minimum to show proof?
MR. KUSHI: Again, you know...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay, I'm just trying to ask if, I mean because, you know, we
have a lot of a part-time residents who have an address here so -MR. KUSHI: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --that would still be...as long as you have an address here that
would still qualify?
MR. KUSHI: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
MR. KUSHI: Proof of residency is, you know, like again driver's license. They would ask you,
you know, do you reside in the County?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
MR. KUSHI: Property ownership, paying of utility bills, et cetera.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. Any or all or just one of those? I mean we...I'm just asking
because I know there's some people who are part-time and I don't want to appoint
somebody who then gets challenged later on because they're part-time.
MR. KUSHI: Again, the ordinance just says residency, shall be residents of the applicable
community land area.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Right. So, that's why I'm asking you what is the definition of
resident.
MR. KUSHI: Again, you know, if...let's say it's...whatever reason it's a part-timer and yet he
or she has property in the mainland and they live here six months out of the year,
et cetera, it's up to you to choose, you know, are they fully connected to the
community plan.
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COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. Thank you for that explanation.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. We did hear from the Mayor's Office and they're waiting for
us to finish our process before they do their appointment. So, that would help us in
teims of that question. Ms. Crivello?
VICE-CHAIR CRIVELLO: I just want to ask Mr. Kushi, you mentioned political parties and
could the NA also should...can they expand on it to say non-partisan? Is that
accepted? Some people choose not to belong to any party.
MR. KUSHI: Non-partisan is a term used for election purposes. Like your election...
VICE-CHAIR CRIVELLO: Right. So -MR. KUSHI: And Council is non-partisan.
VICE-CHAIR CRIVELLO: --can that also be for a board member that they don't belong to any
particular party? Do they have to belong to a party to qualify their application?
MR. KUSHI: You don't have to belong to a party, but if you do, then your party affiliation
counts towards the board membership. Okay. So, our Charter is just, basically says
you cannot have all Republicans or all Democrats more than a bare majority.
Non-partisan, if you say non-partisan it doesn't mean...you have to ask the applicant.
It doesn't mean it's... are you independent?
VICE-CHAIR CRIVELLO: But there's an Independent Party too, you know.
MR. KUSHI: Do you belong to any party? Do you associate with any party?
VICE-CHAIR CRIVELLO: Okay. Gotta change the Charter. Thanks.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. So, since we're talking about that, right now with the
applicants there are four who have put NA or none. Five Democrats, four
independent, two Republican based upon the spreadsheet that you have, it has the
indication of political affiliation. Any other questions for Coip. Counsel or the
Department? Seeing none...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Oh yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Mr. Kushi, so is there a...could there be or in
your eyes any applicants who may be from a developer background, a realtor
background, any type of conflict as in fmancial gain per se in any decisions or input
they may put upon this plan which may, you know, give them political... sorry,
monetary, financial gain in their decision making on the plan?

POLICY, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, AND AGRICULTURE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

September 11, 2018

MR. KUSHI: That's a very general question, Member Cochran. If you're saying that the
member should vote for development which then improves his livelihood as a realtor or
developer, again, he's 1 of 13 people. He or she is 1 of 13 people. Again, it's very hard
to say at this point in time is it a direct financial interest or conflict, I can't really
answer that right now.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Yeah, I think the question is more towards there are
specific applicants who specifically work for developer/landowners in West Maui, and
should they push and get particular projects built in or specific type of zoning built in
on the maps, into the plan, in the end that's one hurdle, green light for that
developer/landowner to move forward on their financial gains.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Mr. Kushi?
MR. KUSHI: Again, you know, without being...without the specifics I cannot respond to that.
Again...but I can respond to your situation is that therefore you want all
non-developers on the board?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
MR. KUSHI: So, what then? I think the ordinance says look at the diversity of the board
itself, be it a developer, be it a non-developer, be it an activist, et cetera. So, this is
what the -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. KUSHI: --community plan is about. Again, it's not a zoning plan, although the
community plans do designate. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
MR. KUSHI: And they designate by areas, not by parcels. Right?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. Thank you.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Done?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Okay. So, at this time, Members, I'm gonna call up the first applicant,
Mr. Aquino.
MS. LINCOLN: He had to leave.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: He had to leave? Okay. So, Mr. Aquino is not here. Okay. So, he
designated a political affiliation so he's fine. The next one in alphabetical order is Ravi
Bugga and as you know, Members, I think he was trying to get in touch with your
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offices in case you had questions for him because he's out of State. Next one on the
list is Yvette Celiz.
MS. CELIZ: Hello.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Hello, Yvette.
MS. CELIZ: All right, it's working. Aloha kakou. First of all, I'd like to give a warm mahalo
to Chair Sugimura and the rest of the Councilmembers for giving us this opportunity
to speak before you and for taking time to listen to what we have to say about our
community. I would also like to thank the Maui County Planning Department for
working tirelessly to hold the West Maui workshops and to draft our West Maui
community profile. We still have a lot of work ahead of us but you've given us a
foundation to build on. My name is Yvette Celiz and I am from Lahaina. I work at the
Sheraton Maui Resort and Spa as the Human Resources Coordinator. After
graduating from Lahainaluna High School, I left home for about six years and part of
me was uncertain about returning home. My dad worked two full-time jobs for as long
as I can remember. He worked 80 hours a week for over 25 years just to make ends
meet. And so I had to ask myself can I afford to have a home in my own hometown?
For me it seemed easy enough to explore, to venture out, find a better community to
put new roots in, but Lahaina is my home. Lahaina is my family. And the truth is
when you've been raised in Lahaina, you really can't find a better community than the
West Maui community. And that's why we're all here today because we love West
Maui and we want to make our homes a better place for our families. As I mentioned
in my application, my vision for West Maui includes affordable housing and economic
stability for our labor force, achieving the Aloha+ Challenge sustainability goals,
preserving and protecting cultural, historic, and environmentally sensitive areas, and
efficiently managing our resources to sustain current and future generations. But this
plan isn't just about what I want. I won't pretend that I know all the answers, I know
that I have a lot of learning ahead of me. This is a plan for the community and it
needs to be by the community. With input from the public workshops, we all need to
work together to create holistic solutions to the challenges that our community faces.
The 1996 plan needs to be updated, but it outlines some key problems and
opportunities that are still very relevant in today's time. What's important is
implementation. We need to hold ourselves accountable, we need to hold our
community accountable, and we need to hold our lawmakers accountable to abide by
the guidelines and policies that will be set forth in this new plan. And thank you for
your time. If you have any questions?
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Anyone have questions for her? Ms. King, do you have
a...is your light on?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Well, it is now. Thank you for being here, and thanks for your
application.
I just have two questions that...do you...are you a full-time...I'm
assuming you're a full-time resident and you work at the Sheraton?
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MS. CELIZ: Yes, I'm a full-time worker at Sheraton and I'm also studying full-time for my
MBA.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay, great. Thank you. Where are you studying at?
MS. CELIZ: It's this online school called Western Governors University.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Nice. Nice. Okay, and you have no political affiliation?
MS. CELIZ: No, I listed as independent because I vote based on the person itself. If...based
on their...kind of what their views are and if I think that they will vote that
represents -COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
MS. CELIZ: --my vote and my family's.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: So, you're not registered with either party?
MS. CELIZ: I'm not registered -COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay, great.
MS. CELIZ: --with either party.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: That's what we need to find out. And I also just...one of my
concerns about CPAC or anybody serving on any board or commission is the
willingness to engage with the community. So, just kind of wanted to get your
thoughts on your availability for being reached, you know, through your contact
information by members of the public.
MS. CELIZ: Oh, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: I mean...
MS. CELIZ: So, I am finishing up my MBA this month actually so once I'm done with that. I
have a set schedule with work so when I'm not at work, I have free time to dedicate to
answer any questions from the public to engage with community members and that
sort of thing.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. And they're willing to let you out of your work schedule if
the CPAC meetings -MS. CELIZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --require?
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MS. CELIZ: Yeah, they've been very -COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
MS. CELIZ: --flexible with my meeting. I'm actually also part of the Cultural and Historic
Resources Commission that's held every Thursday so let me take off work to go to
that.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay, great. And so I just wanted to make the point for you and
all the other members that the CPAC remains in, you know, you're going to be a CPAC
member until the West Maui Community Plan is actually approved by the Council so
beyond the six months you may be called upon for input, so.
MS. CELIZ: Thank you, Ms. King. I'm ready for the commitment -COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
MS. CELIZ: --and excited for it.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay, great. Thank you for being here.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: So, before you...before I get to you...I have a question for you. So, I
also...as you mentioned you're on the CRC?
MS. CELIZ: Yes.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Cultural Resources Commission. And they meet...what time do they
meet?
MS. CELIZ: Every first Thursday of the month at 11:00 a.m.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: At 11:00 a.m., and your job allows you to do that. Mister...the CPAC
meetings are in the evening?
MR. ALUETA: Typically, yes, because people have to work during the day.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Okay. So, it's...okay.
MS. CELIZ: Yeah, I actually have attended some of the West Maui community workshops.
MR. ALUETA: Right.
MS. CELIZ: And yeah, it's been in the evening so I would go right after work.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Okay. So, that wouldn't be a conflict for you with being on the CRC and
then if you were on the CPAC, your Sheraton will still allow you to do that then?
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MS. CELIZ: Yes.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Okay. Ms. Cochran, you have a question?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, thank you. And thank you for being here and your
willingness to step up. And it sounds like you're doing quite a bit. So, with the
Sheraton you're not part of the union there?
MS. CELIZ: My position is non-union.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Non-union, oh, okay. And so that was one of my...because
of the political affiliation. I know the unions are staunch Democratic party affiliation.
So, okay, that answers that. And also Ms. King did ask, you know, about the
commitment because I'm thinking this could go on. Six months I think is being very,
you know, light, putting it lightly. I'm thinking more even if it went a year. So, you
don't have aspirations to, you know, venture out to, you know, anywhere? You're
going to stay put and -MS. CELIZ: I really wanted to come home.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --stay home?
MS. CELIZ: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MS. CELIZ: And to stay put and...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Excellent. Very good. Thank you. And so and it sounds
like you have looked through the existing community plan which is pretty old but it is
existing.
MS. CELIZ: Yeah, I haven't read through it in detail but I did look through it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. All right, very good. Just to get a little familiarity I
guess as to what exists and to what we can strive to bring up to date and the needs.
In particular what would you say...I know you mentioned housing of course but any
other top-of-mind -MS. CELIZ: I mean a lot of it...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --issues?
MS. CELIZ: Yeah, I mean it's affordable housing and it's also the infrastructure in West Maui
that needs to be updated whether it's the roads, whether it's, you know, the sewage,
and that sort of thing. But also protecting cultural and historic resources, for me it's
very important. When you're raised in Lahaina and you know how special Lahaina is.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, yeah. Well, very good. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Mr. Guzman, your light is on, do you have a question?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, it's just a basic question. How did you hear about the
CPAC?
MS. CELIZ: From attending the We Are Maui public meetings, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: And how did you hear about the meetings? What interested
you to attend the meetings?
MS. CELIZ: I can't remember when I first heard about the meetings, it might have been
through Facebook, but I really wanted to, you know, I think that each and every one of
us has a platform that to find where we can make the most difference in our own
community. And so when I heard about the West Maui meetings, I wanted to attend
to see how the process is done, to learn more, and see what can I do about...what can
I do in my own community because I'm, you know, I'm still learning. There's so many
things for me to learn and I want to get involved and see how I can make that impact
to make our communities a better place.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. What is your opinion or what do you think the CPAC
does and what has it done significantly in the past?
MS. CELIZ: I think...so the...well I mean just going through the 1996, they did set up the
different goals and objectives to not only shape...it's a guideline to shape
different... sorry, I'm like going through it. It talks a lot about population growth, what
can we expect, and so, you know, one of the things that interested me was talking
about the different problems like just the environment and potential loss of open space
and land use controls. And, you know, I mean going through all that little detail, but
it really just serves as a guidelines not only for future developments or projects or
plans but also that help shape our own community and our population growth and
things that, you know, need to be... sorry, I'm not...I don't know how to put that in
words. I don't know if that made sense to you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: It does because you've explained some of the aspects or the
subject matter, but what I'm asking you is the duties and what are your expectations
of what do you think the CPAC does specifically?
MS. CELIZ: So, my expectation is for all of our members, you know, to hold these public
workshops, to learn from what does the community want when we have these
workshops, what are the things that we're targeting, whether it's coastal resilience,
whether it's, you know, whether it's infrastructure. But it's just saying to take all the
inputs that we all work together to update this plan to say okay, what's missing from
this plan, how can we make this better, and how can we implement it. And then
submit it to the Councilmembers for it to be approved.
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: What happens after that?
MS. CELIZ: After that we go, you know, years go by, we have to follow the plan. It's the
guideline as we move forward for our community to grow.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Very good. Ms. Crivello?
VICE-CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. First of all I want to thank you for putting in an
application and I appreciate people coming home and to hold on to the values that you
grew up with. So, as you go through the CPAC planning, I know none of the
applicants and even us are not the experts. So, first of all I appreciate it. And I note
here that your involvement in other community experience allows you the...has...or is
allowing you the opportunity to understand processes and your participations of
value. My question is because most of all you mention that many of...you may come
in with your own platform and/or own agenda. Are you able to work through this
process, how you will be able to collaborate your platform or agenda? Do you see that
as just coming in with steadfasting your own agenda?
MS. CELIZ: I mean yeah, so there is...yeah, like I was mentioning I have my vision, I have
my views, I have what I want to accomplish, but again it isn't about me, it's about the
whole community. So, it's really the input if someone else has a suggestion that's
different from my own but if I can see that working well together, if we can all work
together and make it, you know, a better solution, I'm willing to accommodate. I mean
I still have my values but it really is about working together and being a team
VICE-CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. I appreciate that. So, you know, when you're done
with the CPAC process and there's the Planning Commission process or what have you
and then it comes back to the Council, do you feel your process in the CPAC process is
the process that once it's done, you feel you would be participating in a sense to
receive all the input you need from your community and balance it out and then come
out with passage and then the next process? Do you feel then again you come back
again and need to go back out into the community, and how long do you feel that the
community plan has to go on and on before it needs to be finalized and accepted as, in
full passage through the Council and what have you?
MS. CELIZ: I mean I'm not sure how long the actual process will take. I know you were
saying six months was kind of a moderate estimate, you know, it could go on for a
year or so. But it really is...to finalize and I think once the plan is done then from
there it's an ongoing process to implement it and to go through it. But the actual
process from start to finish, I'm not too certain how long it will take when everyone
has the inputs to put together and to kind of find that solution that works for the
whole community 'cause it's not one-fit-all solution.
VICE-CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you. Thank you.
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CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Oh, one moment. Mr. Alueta?
MR. ALUETA: Just to be clear, you'll have six months -MS. CELIZ: Okay.
MR. ALUETA: --from the start. Okay. So...
MS. CELIZ: Six months is from the...
MR. ALUETA: Yeah, that's what the Code says. Yeah, so once you're seated...
MS. CELIZ: After the meetings or including?
MR. ALUETA: Once you're seated.
MS. CELIZ: Oh, okay.
MR. ALUETA: Once the CPAC is seated, you'll have six months. And so again, as I indicated
it will be very important for them to, you know, have your opinions, hash out what you
have and make...and move on to a decision. As also just in general to respect that it's
a process, I mean for all of the participants that you're a step in the process and that
it went...once it goes to Council, changes will be made and even from the Department
well make recommendations. But it's all part of a process and as long as we can get a
good diverse voice of the needs and wants of the community and we can put it down
and try to...in an implementable plan. That's another key point, implementable plan,
it's important, so. But thank you. I just wanted to make that clear that we don't
scare anybody off. Thank you.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Thank you for that clarification. Ms. King and then
Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah so...yeah and just to further clarify, the six months is the
CPAC's obligation -MS. CELIZ: Once seated.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --for meetings till you pass it out, but you will be a sitting CPAC
member until it gets approved by the Planning Commission and then the Council.
And so many planning...many CPAC members do attend the Planning Commission
meetings and beyond if you so choose. So, you know, you're not just...you're not told
to stay away after that point. But the only other question I had was if you could just
give us a general and maybe all the other applicants who are here, maybe a little bit
more specific, but general idea of like do you live in Lahaina Town or...because
everybody put Lahaina, but we're...I'm hoping we get, you know, we get
representation. It's West Maui so I'm hoping we get representation in, from Kapalua to
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Kaanapali to Olowalu through that whole area. So, do you have... can you give me a
little bit more specific. Do you live -MS. CELIZ: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --in Lahaina Town?
MS. CELIZ: Yes, I live near Princess Nahienaena Elementary School.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay, so you are in Lahaina Town?
MS. CELIZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay, great. Thank you.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, thank you. I just want...Ms. King reiterated and
elaborated a little bit more about the reference to the total adoption of the plan. CPAC
yeah six months but the total adoption is definitely going to go beyond the six months.
And I guess this is, sorry it's not really for you but maybe for the process. I only see
one of the nominee contact information form which I know is confidential, but I have
not received, not hers or anyone else's, I only see one person's. So, just curious, did
you fill out...besides...
MS. CELIZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MS. CELIZ: Yeah, I did fill out -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: You did fill that -MS. CELIZ: --the contact form.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --one out? It gives your actual address, your actual contact
information and things? Okay.
MS. CELIZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: 'Cause I don't have any of those copies except for one. So,
okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah, I don't have that either.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, I don't.
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CHAIR SUGIMURA: So, the applications are...was...as part of the resolution.
MS. ESPELETA: Madam Chair, the contact information foul]. for each candidate is
confidential. The only reason why you see that one for Paul Laub is because the date
timestamp is on...was not on his application, it was on the contact information form
which is the reason why we had to redact all the other information, and it just shows
his name and the date and time we received his application.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: So, the applicants were provided to us on...the applications on
Granicus, and what Ms. Espeleta is talking about is that when...to prepare for any
questions as to be sure that all the applications were received by the deadline, that
that's the documents that were passed out to you today, Members. Any more
questions for her? Yes, Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah, so is there a reason why we didn't get the information on,
you know, their actual address and why Councilmembers...I mean we've been able to
see that for...
CHAIR SUGIMURA: So, Ms. Espeleta, that's...
MS. ESPELETA: Madam Chair, on the application form itself, there's a notation which says
upon submission, Page 1 of this application will be made available to the public for
viewing and copying so that was the Page 1, the application form that we made
available in Granicus.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: No, I understand that but I'm just saying for Councilmembers,
you know, where...we should be able to be trusted with confidential information but
we did not receive that second page.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: So, you're asking for the Page 2?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah just because then I don't have to ask -CHAIR SUGIMURA: It's not public...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --every single member where, exactly where they live. But I mean
I just want to...and we're looking for balance so I'd like to see that, you know,
geographically. And by the way, I was going to also thank you for, you know, the first
applicant that probably gets the most grilling as we're trying to decipher the
information.
MS. CELIZ: No problem.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: The other ones that will come up will give us that information.
But thank you. You've done a very good job of handling the questions, so.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Yeah. One moment. I'm going to go into a short recess. . . .(gavel).
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RECESS:

10:32 a.m.

RECONVENE: 10:34 a.m.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: . . .(gavel). . . The meeting will now come back to order. So, Staff is
looking at Page 2 which has the confidential information, we will not, you know, put
that portion on Granicus for public information. By looking at the applications,
everybody says they live in Lahaina so if you want to go further into where you can
ask the applications...applicants. We are going to lose quorum at 11:15 so I want to
get through everybody as best as we can.
VICE-CHAIR CRIVELLO: I'm sorry, 11:50.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Oh, 50.
VICE-CHAIR CRIVELLO: I have to leave...yeah.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Oh, okay. I'm sorry. Good, more time. Yvette Celiz, thank you very
much. You did a very good job. The next applicant in alphabetical order is Lee Allen
Chamberlain who is not on island who may have called your office. Next is Karen
Comcowich. After that is Donald Gerbig, followed by Dawn Nordblom. Thank you
very much, Karen.
MS. COMCOWICH: Aloha. My name is Karen Comcowich. I live in Lahaina also near
Princess Nahienaena. My daughters attend school there. I applied to be on the West
Maui Community Plan Advisory Committee, because I would like to see Maui
developed in a way that is sustainable and enjoyable for both residents and visitors. I
would be a good member of the Maui Community Plan Advisory Committee, because I
understand the different positions on development. I work in the tourism industry
and I arrived on Maui 13 years ago as a visitor and I stayed to make my life here. So, I
understand the need to make Maui welcoming for visitors while still making it
comfortable and enjoyable for full-time residents. I appreciate your time and
consideration. Thank you.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Anyone have questions for her? Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Thank you, Chair. Thanks for being here, I appreciate your
waiting through all the issues we had this morning. So, I'm just looking at your
profession and it says caretaker, Wai Ola Vacation Paradise. Is that a short-term
rental?
MS. COMCOWICH: That is a vacation rental where the owner lives on property.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. Like a condo or hotel?
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MS. COMCOWICH: No, it is a...there's four separate units in a house and then the owner
lives in...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. But it's permitted I'm assuming?
MS. COMCOWICH: It is permitted.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah, okay. So, I just kind of wanted to get your take on—well,
it's such a big issue these days--on the permit cap and whether you support
the...because I know West Side is reaching, Lahaina is reaching its cap, the
number...for the number of permitted short-term rentals.
MS. COMCOWICH: I actually think the cap should be lower. There are way too many
vacation rentals right now, even legal ones. They spring up in every single
neighborhood and you can always tell 'cause there's a certain color of pasty white you
can only get when you don't live here.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. All right. I think that's the only question I had. And I
appreciate your involvement in the, that...from the beach cleanups to the...also
community organizations. So, I think that's really important. Maybe you could just
give us a little bit of background of your involvement in the stakeholder meetings
leading up to the CPAC appointments, the ones that the Planning Department has
been holding in Lahaina. Have you been attending those?
MS. COMCOWICH: I went to one a while ago. I have not been to a recent one.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
MS. COMCOWICH: This year both my daughters are in school so I have significantly more
time to dedicate to being an active member of the community.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. And you're good for the six months of meetings plus -MS. COMCOWICH: I am -COUNCILMEMBER KING: --whatever...okay.
MS. COMCOWICH: --and I make my own schedule so I can -COUNCILMEMBER KING: Oh, okay.
MS. COMCOWICH: --take my time off whenever I want it.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay, great. Thank you.
MS. COMCOWICH: All right, thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER KING: Thanks for being here.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Anybody have any more questions? Seeing...oh, Mister...no? Oh,
Ms. Cochran, did you have a question?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. Hi, good morning, and thank you so much and for
stepping up and being, you know, more involved with your community. And I think so
you've been...have you had a chance to get a little bit acquainted with the community
plan, existing plan or aware of, you know, how our planning kind of works and what
efforts you would be wanting to, you know, put into it?
MS. COMCOWICH: I have not looked over it this month, but I have looked over it in the past.
I read very quickly and I'm very good at assimilating information and taking different
viewpoints into consideration.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you. And then I think...if...the top of your
head, what would be your top I guess concern or something you would want to really,
you know, during your decision making of our plans, what would be kind of top of
mind for you?
MS. COMCOWICH: Preservation of natural areas for the community to enjoy and for the
health of the island.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MS. COMCOWICH: Like the native forests that help a lot with flooding and erosion.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. No, very good. Again, thank you for willingness to
step up and be involved and your time.
MS. COMCOWICH: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you very much. Next applicant is Donald Gerbig.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Sorry.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Could you come back here?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, one sec.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: I'm sorry, I didn't see your... Mr. Guzman has a question for you.
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, thank you. Just briefly, you say that one of your
greatest concerns was the over-development of luxury properties. So, what areas of
the growth boundaries in West Maui do you foresee are...that you would like to
exclude these luxury properties from?
MS. COMCOWICH: Ideally there wouldn't be any more luxury developments, because there's
not enough housing for workers but there's plenty of luxury housing for people who
don't live here. I also realize that that is not possible so that is something that I would
take into consideration where other people stand. I really believe in a moratorium on
building of luxury housing.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Did you say build a moratorium?
MS. COMCOWICH: A moratorium for luxury housing.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh, okay.
MS. COMCOWICH: Just luxury housing.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. Thank you very much.
MS. COMCOWICH: All right.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you very much. Mr. Gerbig?
MR. GERBIG: Can you hear me?
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Yes.
MR. GERBIG: My name's Don Gerbig. I have applied for this job because I'm retired and I
have the time. To give you a little bit of experience or what I have as experience, I've
worked for the sugar plantation, Pioneer Mill, other islands. I live in Kahana. I have
lived there almost 18 years. I have lived in Olowalu, I lived there about five years. But
I've been plantation experience mainly and not only...not in development but in other
areas, in regulatory things such as environmental regulation. I worked in that area for
Amfac for about six-seven years, ensuring that we met all the environmental
regulations that were required on a sugar plantation. In other areas, I worked as
safety coordinator for Amfac, sugar plantations also. My thinking on this guidance is
that I like the idea...I've read through the guidance, I like the thing that it is a
guidance that needs to be evaluated in today's numbers, and I think that's the
primary purpose of this commission is to do that, to verify the numbers. My one
concern as far as...or concern in the area of West Maui is development like everybody
else's. I'm also concerned that we do have the ability to build some affordable
housing, but that it doesn't interfere that much with traffic which is all development.
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The other concern I always have in the back of my head is the one thing that I worry
about is that the infrastructure can meet the demand for the developments. I think
that's one of the biggest priorities that we have is we can't build houses if we don't
have enough sewage disposal or we have enough drinking water, plus the fact that we
don't want to ensure that...or we want to ensure that we're not polluting the ocean
and the beaches 'cause that's our livelihood. So, that's basically my concern is I'm
just going through it as a guidance is this guidance as a way of looking at it, that we
ensure that we don't make some dumb mistakes in the future based on the knowledge
that we have now. So, my concern at these meetings will probably be mostly that I'd
like to see the numbers, that we all look at the numbers and we're looking at the right
numbers. Thank you.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you, Mr. Gerbig. Anyone have questions for him? Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you very much for being here. On your...I know that
you had some experience on the Department of Ag, on the board. What year was that
when you served?
MR. GERBIG: Say that again?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh, it appears that you had some experience here, DOA
board, State of Hawaii.
MR. GERBIG: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Is that Department of Agriculture, right?
MR. GERBIG: Yes. I was on a...I've been on...committees that I've been on, I've been on the
Board of Water Supply, Maui County. I've also been a State...on a State agricultural
advisory committee which actually was the regulation of pesticides in a roundabout
way, issues.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: When you served on the Water Board was that when it was
basically independent?
MR. GERBIG: Yeah, since it...yeah, independent. Yes. It was not...we didn't manage the
Water Department like it was before with...I was with Dave.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Thank you. Thank you for being here, Mr. Gerbig. So, you know,
I just wanted to follow up on the...you're on the board of the...were you on the board
of the Department of Agriculture or you said advisory committee. Was there a
separate committee besides...
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MR. GERBIG: Yeah, these are separate committees, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. So...
MR. GERBIG: The pesticide advisory committee, it's a State organization. And the Board of
Water Supply is Maui County.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Right, no, I understand that. But the...so the...but so the
Department of Agriculture has various committees that advises, so you were on one of
those committees? Or were you on the actual board for the Department of
Agriculture?
MR. GERBIG: I missed the...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: 'Cause your application says DOA board.
MR. GERBIG: The...what board are you talking...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Well, your application says State of Hawaii DOA board which I'm
assuming is Department of Agriculture. So, but... so I'm trying to differentiate, were
you on a advisory committee to the board or were you on the board...
MR. GERBIG: It was an advisory committee to the board.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Oh, okay.
MR. GERBIG: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
MR. GERBIG: The existing, the same similar to what goes...the way it's operated now.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. And then I also noted that you are...you've been president
of the Kahana Ridge Association which I assume is an HOA, is a homeowners
association?
MR. GERBIG: That's a subdivision or, you know, because it is a, it's not privately owned but
the...well, what I say, the parks and the streets and all of that. It's just a subdivision
only -COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
MR. GERBIG: --private...like a condominium association.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. And you've been president of that since 1996 until...
MR. GERBIG: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER KING: Wow, I give you a lot of credit because HOAs are not easy to
participate in, much less be president of. So, that's pretty...
MR. GERBIG: If I can find a replacement though I would.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Sometimes you just have to say this is my last year, that's from
personal experience. But no, I appreciate you being here and I appreciate the diversity
that you've...youll be bringing. And also just wanted to get a feeling of in your opinion
how you work with the general public as far as taking in testimony and being available
for...to be contacted outside of CPAC meetings if that's something you're anticipating?
MR. GERBIG: The...I'm not sure of your question. I don't...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. Well, you know, as a Councilmember and certainly as a
board member myself of various other nonprofits, you know, I was available also to
constituents and general public outside of, you know, this Chambers, people call me
and people e-mail me.
MR. GERBIG: No, we don't. We don't have any contact. We're not politically oriented. We
don't even allow political signs to be in the...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: No, no, I just wondered if you see that as your role as a CPAC
member. So, if we appoint you, are you going to be available to the general public in,
you know, people in Lahaina who want to contact you outside of those meetings and
have discussions?
MR. GERBIG: No, I think if that...you're talking about the time that it's, taken up in that
organization? It's very little.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: No, no, no, I'm just talking about your accessibility as a member
of the CPAC, of the community plan advisory committee, if you're appointed would you
make yourself accessible to the public, you know, the West Maui public outside of the
CPAC meetings if somebody wanted to call you or contact you by e-mail with their
concerns, with their input?
MR. GERBIG: I would...whatever is needed as far as CPAC is concerned, what I have read, I
am willing to go along with it in any way. I'm not going to add anything to their
requirements.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you, Mr. Gerbig. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Oh, sorry.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait, Mr. Gerbig.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Mr. Gerbig? Mr. Gerbig?
MR. GERBIG: Oh.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Ms. Cochran has a question.
MR. GERBIG: Thank you, Elle.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Hi, good morning. How are you doing? Nice to see you. I
think...let me reformat the question. So, in order...are you willing to reach out to
others in your community, your close, you know, circle of friends and family to get
input, you know, to...during your decision making with CPAC?
MR. GERBIG: No, I would probably talk to...yes, I would talk -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
MR. GERBIG: --friends, family and...that what's going on and but the thing is I realize that
CPAC is like a board, we have to vote on things. I may not agree with everything but
we'll vote whatever way I feel is the best, and that's why I was concerned that we have
good numbers that CPAC or whatever we request for the...that we can vote with good
knowledge of the subject.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Very good. And also one of your greatest concern is
overbuilding without consideration of infrastructure needs.
MR. GERBIG: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Can you elaborate on that?
MR. GERBIG: I'm...well, one of the things that concerns me and I don't know where the
numbers are now, but several years ago, not many years ago, I recall at some meeting
on the development that we weren't going to...the County was looking at approving or
a new development and whatever. And I remember that I...the...what is it, sewage
department head was there, and I asked him specifically 'cause this would concern
Lahaina, I said what's the capacity of the plant and the plant was something like I'm
just going to say 3.2 million gallons a day and this thing would bring it over, this
development...approval of this development would bring it over. So, my question was
how are you going to handle that? And there was really not much of an answer that I
got from 'em. So, that always sticks in my head, where are we on this effluent thing,
because we're not going to be able to put it in the ocean anymore or whatever...with all
these things is what are we going to do? And that's what concerns me about
development. I want development, you know, reliable development as well as anybody
else. But I want to ensure that we have the infrastructure to do it. And like you say,
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drinking water is another one. You know we're taking water from the streams, the
State is now making rules on this like how much we can take for the County and how
much we can't and all this. So, I'm really concerned about that, that we go...approve
all these developments or whatever, we've got to look at the...keep the infrastructure in
mind, very seriously. That's what...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, yeah, thank you. Thank you very much -MR. GERBIG: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --for your time.
MR. GERBIG: Thank you.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you, Mr. Gerbig. Thank you. Next is Dawn Hegger-Nordblom.
After that is Paul Laub. Michele Lincoln after that.
MS. HEGGER-NORDBLOM: Good morning and aloha. Thank you for having this meeting
right before our wonderful Tropical Storm Olivia. I'm not sure where it's at at the
moment but thank you having this meeting for the Policy, Economic Development, and
Agricultural Committee. The reason why I applied to be on the CPAC committee is
because I live in Kapalua. I have two children who are stepchildren who go to...one
goes to Lahainaluna and one goes to Sacred Hearts. I work in Lahaina, I have some
private clients. So, I'll go through, I did read the plan. I have 21 things that I would
like to see improved within the plan but I won't go through them. Within my
statement, I basically said that I am very interested in the environment, in how
development affects the environment; shoreline erosion, beach nourishment,
infrastructure...our failing infrastructure, the road realignment possibly of
Honoapiilani Highway, and affordable housing. Because I do see that there are a lot of
commuters who come back and forth, and short story is I actually went to high school
at Seabury Hall and I was a boarder in 1987. And so when I was very young, I
remember that there was not a lot of traffic on the roads and there are a lot of people
who still were able to camp and enjoy the national...the recreational resources that we
have. Fast-forward to today and I live up in Kapalua and as many of you know
Kapalua Beach is one of the number one beaches for that magazine. And Ill tell you, I
will go diving and swimming because I live right up the street from that bay and there
are people screaming with joy, literally screaming because they're tourists and there
are a lot of people who live here as well, you know, residents who go to the bay. But
it's really sad to me to see a lot of these places, bays, recreational areas being
overcrowded and the local people are not able to enjoy these places as we like to. And
I see a lot of the marine environment being chased away by tourists with GoPro sticks
and everything. And people, you know, they just kind of swim in front of you. So, I
would actually like to see something that's not necessarily in the plan for tourism but
definitely something where we are addressing tourism numbers, we're addressing
infrastructure, we're addressing cars on the road, and we're addressing affordable
housing for people who live here and actually to be able to afford it. There are a lot of
loopholes and a lot of things that people have to jump through to actually go through
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affordable housing and reach the median income. And Ill tell you, there are not a lot
of people on Maui who can even get that median income without working two jobs,
and those jobs are not necessarily in Lahaina but they're also on the Grand Wailea
side or Kihei side or Upcountry side. So, I'd like to see people who actually live in
Lahaina stay in Lahaina, be able to afford something in Lahaina. And one last thing
about traffic is traffic is really terrible, and I think a lot of people saw this during the
last fire that there are not a lot of places to go. And I've been helping Joe Pluta with
the Maui...West Maui Community Disaster Plan, the draft, with...in conjunction of
Department of Defense and Maui Emergency Agency. And Ill tell you, you know, on
that side that night, it was crazy and there were a lot of people who were in parking
lots who had to go to the bathroom, who had to go buy new food and water. And as a
community and I hope that part of this plan addresses it is that we take care of our
community. And I know there are a lot of local groups who do take care of the
community, but I do believe that we need to actually go a little bit farther and identify
areas that are safe and that are available for people. So, I'll go into my background
really quickly. I'm really sorry to have gone to that segue there. Currently, I own my
own company, it's called Ke Kai Planning. I'm also a notary public which is another
company I own. I work part-time right now for Trilogy not as their employee but like
as a temporary employee. I also work for Lilly Pulitzer and I'm not wearing their
clothes today but I do work for them. So, I just want to tell you I'm...got fingers in the
pie everywhere. I do...have been working for Department of Land and Natural
Resources as a regulatory planner and for the Conservation District for over ten years.
After that job, I went and I worked for the Honolulu Area Rapid Transit Authority
where I was a program manager, and I did the National Environmental Policy Act for
the programmatic agreement for the rail. So, basically I met with Native Hawaiian
parties, I did community outreach, I was in control of the Kakaako contract which is
basically a $1 million contract to ensure that the Native Hawaiian community groups
and lineal and cultural descendents could meet with HART and have extraordinary
communications which sometimes went and sometimes didn't. I was also... did work
for Maui County for a short while for the Special Management Area as a planner. I
also worked for the Hawaii Community Development Authority which is affordable
housing in Kakaako for about eight months. There I did community outreach and I
also went to the Legislature and I was the executive director's Legislative rep so I'd
have to go and ask for CIP funds and talk to all the Legislators and argue for money.
Last job was me...for the Hawaii Army National Guard as a program manager for the
National Environmental Policy Act. So, basically I ensured that Statewide the AJL my
National Guard could go ahead and do all their wonderful emergency proclamations
and help the community as well as deploy as well as doing training on the states...all
the installations that they have. So, that's it for summary.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Members... so you're one of the ones that have political
affiliation you put NA, so you need to let us know what that means and you could do
it... to... of my Staff or you -MS. HEGGER-NORDBLOM: Sure.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: --can tell me right now.
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MS. HEGGER-NORDBLOM: I'm non-partisan, and again like the first speaker I really want
to vote for the person who's going to have...
CHAIR SUGIMURA: So, you're independent?
MS. HEGGER-NORDBLOM: Independent, yeah, sorry.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Independent.
MS. HEGGER-NORDBLOM: Yes.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Okay. So, we got that, independent. Members, you have any questions
for her? She has quite a diverse background. Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, thank you. I appreciate that education and the
experience. Your planning company, the LLC started 2017 through the present. What
exactly is it specialized in? And -MS. HEGGER-NORDBLOM: Go ahead, sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --who are your average clientele?
MS. HEGGER-NORDBLOM: So, it's slow, I can tell you that I don't have very many clients. I
have one client who is trying to get their house built in Olowalu and I also work...some
side work for a lawyer who's cleaning up encroachment issues for Department of Land
and Natural Resources and the County as well. So, I don't have very many clients
because honestly I've spent all my time getting the company going. And I'm not
just.. .111 tell you I haven't applied for the professional service list for Maui County, but
I am on the professional services list for Hawaii County and Kauai County. And I've
applied for the Department of Defense professional service list. But the main
trying...bull( of my work is actually Federal because working for DOD it's actually
Federal money. So, I'm actually a woman-owned business and a HUBZone business
and that's where I, you know, I look on the GSA website for jobs.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay, very good. Thank you.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Thank you. Well, that was one of my questions but thank you for
that. And then my...one of my biggest concerns because you're so busy is time. Like,
you know, are you going to be able to set aside some of these part-time jobs or work
your schedule around them -MS. HEGGER-NORDBLOM: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --for the CPAC?
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MS. HEGGER-NORDBLOM: Yes. And I don't think any of us would have applied if we
weren't really interested in, you know, being able to shape West Maui. And, you know,
I have to say I've seen a lot of plans through my work for DLNR, and plans are only as
good as long as you can implement them. And some plans you really can't implement.
And I saw in this plan a lot of great implementation. There is one thing that I would
ask if anybody is on the committee that the Planning Department actually gives an
update of what has been accomplished in this plan so far, because I'm not sure if
there is something but I'd like to see something and make it a little bit easier reading.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. Yeah and I, just, you know, I appreciate the answer, but
one of the reasons why I ask that question is because we have had members of other
CPAC organization, you know, CPAC groups and/or Planning Commissions who
haven't shown...who have applied and then not attended meetings.
MS. HEGGER-NORDBLOM: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: So, it does happen. So, it's just a, you know, just a -MS. HEGGER-NORDBLOM: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --precaution and I just want everyone to know that we do expect
that just like the general public expects us to show up for our meetings. So -MS. HEGGER-NORDBLOM: Yes, that's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --appreciate that. Thank you.
MS. HEGGER-NORDBLOM: Yeah.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you very much. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And thank you for your willingness to volunteer for this. So,
you mention greatest concerns number one is traffic and what have you... so you have
some solutions for that?
MS. HEGGER-NORDBLOM: I do, I'm not sure you'd like them. Well, maybe -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Well, I mean it is...
MS. HEGGER-NORDBLOM: --some divisions might not like them. I do think there should
be a roundabout at Keawe Street. The traffic is really horrible when you come up the
street in the morning for Lahainaluna. I do think there should be two access roads in
and out of Lahainaluna High School if possible. I know the bypass probably cuts
some time...type of access off. I do think there should be a realignment of

- 33 -

POLICY, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, AND AGRICULTURE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

September 11, 2018

Honoapiilani Highway inland and I do think that the County or State should condemn
the land to make it happen. And I do think that the highway should extend from
Keawe Street to where it was supposed to go I think below the airport or around it. I
think it was below the airport. So, yeah, I have a lot of suggestions because I do think
that Lahaina is not just the hub anymore, I do believe that there are other
communities that need to get to places. And having to sometimes route through
Keawe Street is not the easiest way to go. And a good example is I know that you
know that when the telephone poles came down between Canoe Beach and the Civic
Center, traffic was at a standstill because there's only one alternative road in
Wahikuli, so.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. All right. Thank you.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you very much. Thank you.
MS. HEGGER-NORDBLOM: Thank you.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: So, I have no other questions. Next is Paul Laub. After that is Michele
Lincoln. Rick Nava after that. We have one, two, three, four, five, six, seven, eight,
more names and a limited amount of time So, Mister...he's one of the eight. Hello.
Hello, Mr. Laub.
MR. LAUB: Aloha mai kakou. Paul Laub .. .(spoke in Hawaiian). . . E kala mai but I seem
to have left my hearings in Lahaina so if you speak up it'd be helpful. I live three
doors down from Bubba Gump's. I got my degree in anthropology. I was a foreman on
the jury for Pulama Heights. I was a member of the Board of Appeals under Mayor
Tavares. I attended planning, the planning programs at the Sheraton Hotel that were
put on by the State. I have attended numerous presentations by the Planning
Department to the Planning Commission. I'm still a licensed dealer in the kinds of
homes that Fabmac has, they're manufactured homes. I've repaired, fixed up
numerous houses for many years. I was president of the Maui County Veterans
Council which is over all of the veterans clubs in the County. I'm currently president
of the West Maui Veterans Club. I take care of the Hanakaoo Cemetery. It was in
terrible condition and it used to blow poison from the dirt onto the beach. I think the
key thing that I'm looking forward to is whatever is done is done with no negative
impact upon the people. Time after time we see infrastructure not completed, we see
things not being taken care of, and it seems that the people theoretically have a voice,
they can come down, stand up and say stuff, but like the location of the Lahaina
Bypass could have definitely been improved upon. The housing, I have submitted to
you two papers. One is housing problems from developers' point of view and why
housing can't be done from developers' point of view. And not that I'm a developer
anymore but that...the idea has to get out and people have to be able to see both sides
to make things happen; otherwise, they're not going to happen. There's another paper
that I put in some time back on disaster management. I got evicted three times in this
last disaster, one because of the ocean is supposed to be rising, the second one
because I happened to wake up in the middle of the night and saw the fire, and
third...end up in Monterey [sic] High Gym, they're very nice there, and then ended up
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in Wailea. So, though the police officers were excellent and it was handled fairly well,
it just was not handled in a manner that I'm used to seeing in more of a military
manner. In more of a military manner you would have reserves, you would have
reserve firefighters. There's volunteer firefighters throughout the country. If we had
volunteer firefighters, we could have had a lot better response in addition to. Also,
there's programs, these firefighters for when positions come up full time. I guess I
could go on but I think I'll stop here.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you.
MR. LAUB: Thank you.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Any questions for Mr. Laub? Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Thank you, Chair. Thanks for being here, Mr. Laub.
MR. LAUB: Can you speak up please, Ms. Kelly? Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Thank you for being here.
MR. LAUB: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: I appreciate you being here. I appreciate your willingness to
serve. So, could you just...you name yourself as a business person, do you have a
current business?
MR. LAUB: Yeah, actually I'm a substitute teacher at Princess Nahienaena. I teach...well,
the kids teach me Hawaiian inclusion. I also handle special needs kids. On the side I
have a bicycle shop. I'm one of those guys -COUNCILMEMBER KING: Oh.
MR. LAUB: --who likes to do, use his hands so I fix up...I...my idea was to get cars off the
street, bikes on the street and maybe make Front Street a walking/bicycle street as
opposed to a vehicle street.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. And you are an actual resident of Lahaina Town, you live
in Lahaina Town?
MR. LAUB: Right. I'm right across from the Methodist Church at Baker and Front.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Oh, okay. And then my other question is your political affiliation
you have as independent. Are you part...I mean I think a lot of people don't
understand there is an Independent Party so that would probably fall into not having
more than the minimum quorum. But are you a non-partisan or are you actually a
member of the Independent Party?

-35 -

POLICY, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, AND AGRICULTURE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

September 11, 2018

MR. LAUB: I feel very strongly that neither party listens to the people.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay, so you're actually non-partisan then? Okay. You're not
like a card-carrying member of the Independent Party?
MR. LAUB: I sign up as independent each time.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Oh, you do. Okay.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you, Mr. Laub.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: I think the other question that I have is just about are you in the
community as far as outreach and talking to folks and are you comfortable with that,
the kind of...receiving the kind of input, you know, like what we have to receive you're
going to have receive on that CPAC committee. And so are you comfortable with that,
going out into the community also to do outreach to get input and opinions?
MR. LAUB: Well...right. And in fact I'm doing that right now taking things around for the
Veterans of Foreign Wars who's on October 13th going to have an event, and they've
requested that I try to pick up items that might go into the silent auction. I take that
opportunity to find out, hey are you, you know, are you ex-military, are you whatever,
whatever they are so that we can kind of form and strengthen ourselves as the
citizens.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay, thank you very much. That's my questions. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Good morning, Mr. Laub. Thank you for being
here.
MR. LAUB: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait, you mentioned Monterey High? You got evacuated to
Monterey High? Isn't that California?
MR. LAUB: I, you know, I've mentioned that a few times like that. I goofed up with that.
That was Maui High.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, Maui, okay.
MR. LAUB: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Maui...okay. That was like...
MR. LAUB: I never even went to Monterey High. I don't know --
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. LAUB: --why it's there but they got it in my mind.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Carmel, Monterey, you know. Okay. So, on your greatest
issue of concern, infrastructure development first. So, just if you can elaborate on
what that is for you?
MR. LAUB: Yeah. Okay. It is economically improbable for anybody to build anything
without having some partnership with this...with the State or the County or the Fed,
and the Fed has put up millions of dollars available for roads, et cetera, which has
been wasted because they...if it's not used, it goes back. That's my understanding.
So, what we need I think from what I've been able to ascertain is to be able to work out
a deal with the County. And this is very common throughout the world where they
say hey, you bring your business to our community and we won't charge you tax for
"x" number of years, et cetera, because we know you're going to be hiring people or
you're doing whatever you're doing. In this case, most important for us I think is
housing. And I happen to be like I say a specialist in expensive housing. Though I
would do not do it here, I won't do it here because it's way too hard to deal here. In
some places it's very easy to deal. And the thing is, is that...I mean we lose guys like
Spencer who is great. And we needed him. I don't know if you knew him but he was a
hard-working, honest, really straightforward guy who built beautiful homes. And but
most people can't do that, they need to work out a deal where you say okay, who's
going to put in the roads, who's going to put in the water, who's going to put in the
sewage? Okay. And if you want the, that to be paid for by the developer then there
must be a methodology to where he can pay for that over time. And this is easy to do,
this is easy to work out. The problem is, is people seem to try to fight each other for
their ideas. The key thing to me in...when I was the foreman at the jury was I would
try to get all the guys who were in agreement on one thing, let's vote on that, you
know. Okay, we got that set aside, now let's go to the next thing. Well, you're already
working together and that's the key is you work together. And if you need to have a
group of developers and a group of whoever, get them all together, sit them down, and
say let's see how can we make this happen, how are we going to take care of these
people. Does that help?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. All right. Thank you. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you, Mr. Laub.
MR. LAUB: We're pau?
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Yeah, pau.
MR. LAUB: Okay. Thank you very much.
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CHAIR SUGIMURA: Michele Lincoln is next. After that is Rick Nava, Kai Nishiki, Dylan
Payne, and then Joe Pluta.
MS. LINCOLN: Thank you, Chair and Councilmembers. My...I was wondering if I could ask
Corporation Counsel a question before I begin my testimony? Would that be allowed?
CHAIR SUGIMURA: That's kind of unusual.
MS. LINCOLN: Would that...
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Why don't you give your testimony and...
MS. LINCOLN: Well, because I might not be able to qualify for a legal reason to serve on the
committee so rather than take time for my testimony.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Oh.
MS. LINCOLN: It...I did write it on -CHAIR SUGIMURA: Okay, go ahead.
MS. LINCOLN: --my form at one point that I do have the Maui Planning Commission in a
lawsuit right now so I don't know if that disqualifies me for -CHAIR SUGIMURA: Oh.
MS. LINCOLN: --serving on this committee.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Mr. Kushi, did you hear her question? She's...do you have a file...do
you have a lawsuit against the County?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Is that what you just said?
MS. LINCOLN: The Maui County Planning Commission. Yes, I have a pending lawsuit.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Mr. Kushi...can I elaborate? Mr. Kushi, well, it states on
Ms. Lincoln's application, I guess you've intervened on an item at the Maui Planning
Commission and currently it's in the Intermediate Court of Appeals? Is that...
MS. LINCOLN: What happened is they didn't allow us to appeal so we have been in the
Intermediate Court of Appeals in an attempt to be able to intervene, so that's what the
case is about. So, I don't know if that disqualifies me for serving on this committee.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Oh, I see. Okay. Mr. Kushi, do you understand?
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MR. KUSHI: So, if I understand the question is does her...is her participation in a lawsuit
against the Maui Planning Commission, does it conflict her out? Is that the question?
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Yeah, does it conflict?
MR. KUSHI: Does it involve a financial interest?
MS. LINCOLN: No.
MR. KUSHI: I'm not familiar with the lawsuit but...
MS. LINCOLN: No.
MR. KUSHI: No? Well, I don't see a problem.
MS. LINCOLN: Okay, thank you.
MR. KUSHI: If it does become a problem, if there is further litigation and assuming that
you're on this commission [sic], we would expect you to declare a conflict if any.
MS. LINCOLN: Of course, yes. Thank you. I'm...just to give you a little bit of background on
myself, I moved to Lahaina just before Hurricane Iwa in 1982. I've been married for
35 years. I worked at Whaler's Locker on Front Street, a little shop there from 1983 to
2017. It was the shop that was looted during Hurricane Lane if that gives you some
reference. I have one biological son who was born on September 11, 1992, that is
Hurricane Iniki. That's the 26th anniversary today of Hurricane Iniki and my son's
birthday. I have two adult adopted children who I adopted through the State when
they were teenagers. They're 27 and 28 years old so I am...have grown children. My
interests growing up here in the Hawaii community in Lahaina, I've lived in the same
neighborhood the whole time I've been here. My interests were primarily related to
kids so involved with youth groups, Sunday schools, that sort of thing. I have hanai'd
dozens unofficially, not through the State. I have done foster care but mostly
unofficially. For years I did hanai dozens of boys who have turned out to be really
amazing young men. I home schooled my son until he was in eighth grade. He got his
GED, went on to college, and here on Maui at the Maui College and got his associates
of arts. And then when we took him to the mainland to get his bachelor's degree and
dropped him off at college there, I was kind of at that point in my life is like okay, got
all those dreams I had as a kid and aspired to and exceeded my expectations.
Whatever you want to do with the rest of my life is fine. I didn't want to miss out on
anything really amazing 'cause His plans are always better than mine. So, when I got
home from taking my son to college it... a woman in my neighborhood approached me
and asked if I would come and testify at the Maui County Council here regarding a
subdivision in Lahaina. And I didn't even know people like me could come and speak
at a County Council meeting. I seldom previously to that year, 2011, I seldom read
the paper, watched the news locally or nationally or internationally because of...I
was...I'm the type of person if I know what's going on and it's something bad I feel like
I have to do something about it. So, when I...I became an intervenor and that's where
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I got a lot of the knowledge that I have, I do not have a formal education in the issues
that are in the Lahaina District and in Hawaii in general. But I did intervene in a
State land use case and I was unable to afford an attorney so I had to represent
myself, and I had never sent an e-mail before, I didn't know how to use a computer
and I had to write my own briefs. I had to do the findings and facts, conclusion of law,
decision and order, I didn't even know what that was. I didn't know what Hawaii
Revised Statute was so I had to read Hawaii Revised Statutes and the Maui
planning... the West Maui planning... Community Plan and the State plan and General
Plan and I had to read all this, and I was originally successful and the project was
denied but then in a motion to...reconsideration, I was eventually overturned. But
this is where I learned about agriculture, traffic impact analysis reports, and our
traffic issues. I learned about HUD guidelines and how 5760,000 is considered
affordable housing which it's not. I learned about quiet title and quitclaim. I learned
about our infrastructure and the problems with that. I learned how State and County
don't communicate with one another, having to do with the school so a lot of the times
the schools are not aware of developments that are getting put into place so they don't
have a way to kind of preplan for that. Those are some of the things that I'm
interested in. This was especially hard for me, I...like I said I didn't know, even know
how to send an e-mail. I did not know how to do a computer so I hadn't typed in 25
years. So, doing all this was especially hard, working a full-time job. And so even
before I put out my letter to intervene, I walked out into the land and I was like so
frustrated, didn't want to do it and said, God, what is the big deal with this land, why
do I have to do this? And the sky turned red like fire, imagine the most red fiery
sunset you've ever seen from the mountain to the ocean, the whole sky turned red
with big purple clouds and it was just this feeling of euphoric, never had it before or
since, this euphoric feeling of peace just came from me head to toe. And I was just
standing there and the verse that came to mind is He leads me by still waters, He
restores my soul. I was walking by the Kahoma Stream which at the time was diverted
so there's this tiny little trickle going down it, and I'm like those are very still waters
but I get what you're saying. The word is restore. So, everything I do, everything I
advocate for is the word restore. So, it's not about stopping development, and it's not
about being an aggressive whatever, it's about restore. I've gone to the, a lot of the
different meetings. One was recently Elle Cochran was there, for the water, the ridge
to reef, and I feel like we're doing a really great job with management of our ridge and
putting... and taking care of that. I think the reef is getting a lot of attention, but it's
the in-between part that's really suffering. And if you consider that we're putting out
fires with saltwater, that cannot be good for our ecosystem. If you want to start
growing things and have viable, a watershed that goes from the mountain to the sea,
you cannot be dumping saltwater. So, restoring some reservoirs as a way of fire
prevention, being able to use freshwater to address that. Also, by having agriculture
and irrigation that would mitigate a lot of the wild fires. And I live in Lahaina. I'm
just going to take a minute here just to give a plug for Joe Aquino who had to leave.
Joe lives up in the Hawaiian Lands and he lost a home during that fire. And at 1:13
in the morning while his house is burning down and he's escaping for his life and with
a truck full of people, he called my husband's phone and let us know that...about the
fire. So, I just want to --
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CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you.
MS. LINCOLN: --say that that's where he lives and that's the kind of person he is, and he's
aware of the issues in that area. I think we should be growing biofuels, having
pastures, growing animal food crops, people food, textiles. David Malo grew his own
cotton and made his own homespun clothes. We should be growing exotic wood
forests, replanting and... so that in-between part, from the ridge to the reef, managing
that with the types of agriculture and an ecosystem, thinking about the future of our
community and the safety. So, Kahoma, I don't know if you're aware of this, I live in
the Kahoma ahupuaa by the Kahoma Stream. And the...right now Stanford Carr's
Kahoma Village is being built on what was formerly part of the Alamihi Fishpond. It
was an inland fishpond at the bottom of Kahoma. And there was a famous battle
before the pre-contact. There was a famous battle fought on that particular property
by Kamehameha the Great and the High Chief of Maui, and the reason they fought for
that land is because the abundant food source of Kahoma. That was enough food in
that ahupuaa to supply all the food that they needed for their troops. So, I would like
to see some of that restored is the loi terraces. That's one thing we learned at the
watershed meeting. Loi terraces are an effective way of putting those along
watersheds and filtering out the pollutants from, land-based pollutants from getting
into the ocean. We're willing to spend millions of dollars on ugly flood channels and
silt basins that need to be restored and constantly managed. What I'd like to see is us
to pay local farmers to plant taro along these loi terraces and fund them to manage
our resources in a beautiful and economical way.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Could you sum it up, could you sum up your presentation?
MS. LINCOLN: Yes.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you.
MS. LINCOLN: Okay. Okay. So, not to worry the construction industry and people that are
in that field. There's going to be a lot of...if we did agriculture, there is a lot of
development as far as barns and processing plants and storage, and there's a lot of
infrastructure that needs to go in as part of that so the unions and construction
industry does not need to worry about being left out if we don't allow just housing and
commercial development in the sense of tourism. My vision for the West Side is that
we have enough tourist accommodations, we have enough high-end housing
developments, we have enough conventional housing developments on the books and
in progress. What we need are actual affordable homes that are affordable in
perpetuity, not 50 years, not 99 years. There's always going to be ag and tourism
industry related jobs that cannot afford to pay exorbitant prices. And so to keep doing
what we're doing is insanity. Community plans are intended to be updated every ten
years, this has been over 22. What I have found in my personal experience with my
two cases in Lahaina is that the community plan is just treated like a really great
suggestion but not an ordinance that it is. I can show you various, you know, reasons
that...just resolutions are made just to willy-nilly change it. And so that being said, I
sometimes feel like it's a waste of time to do this, because they really don't necessarily
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try to follow it and take...they kind of do what they want if they own the land and have
control of it. So, that being said, I still do desire the influence on the West Maui's
growth and to protect our close-knit community. That takes work in an tourist
inundated area and that's something you need to work at. So, if...
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you.
MS. LINCOLN: Okay, thanks.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you very much. Anybody has any questions? I think she's said
it all but...
MS. LINCOLN: That's what I meant. Thanks.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Yes, Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Is that funny that I have a question? No, I think it's amazing that
you've come so far when you said you didn't even know how to do e-mail so I'm
assuming you have those e-mail contacts now and you are able to be reached by all of
those different contacts?
MS. LINCOLN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: So, but you are a manager, sales of your own store...
MS. LINCOLN: No, no, no. I...that was from 1980...1 worked for somebody from 1983 -COUNCILMEMBER KING: Oh.
MS. LINCOLN: --until 2017. So, I'm currently unemployed.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Oh, okay. So, you're...but you're going to be able to...I mean
that's a lot of time to put in if you're, you know, struggling to find a working position
as well.
MS. LINCOLN: Oh, I'm not struggling to find any work.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Oh, okay.
MS. LINCOLN: I'm working on some books and -COUNCILMEMBER KING: Oh, okay.
MS. LINCOLN: --writing and -COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
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MS. LINCOLN: --so I'm just taking a...well, we'll call it a sabbatical.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah, thank you for your willingness to serve and all of the
actions that you've taken previously. I know it's not easy. I've been in your position
before wondering why I was doing something for the public. It takes up all my time.
And then the last question I have is when you put under political affiliation tends
towards Republican/staunch conservative but are you actually registered with any
party?
MS. LINCOLN: Usually I register Republican but in one of the last governor races I switched
to Democrat just for strategic reason. And this last primary, I signed up as an
independent but generally I sign up as a Republican historically.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. 'Cause I think for this purpose, for the legal purposes we
just know...we need to know -MS. LINCOLN: Republican.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --if you have an official affiliation with any political party right
now.
MS. LINCOLN: It would be Republican.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
MS. LINCOLN: But if you look at my record, you will see for the last two primaries I did...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. No, I don't have any judgment on how you vote.
MS. LINCOLN: Okay. All right. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: I just want to make sure that we're -MS. LINCOLN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --you know, legally we aren't -MS. LINCOLN: Yes, Republican.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --overstepping so that was my only concern. Thank you.
MS. LINCOLN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Thanks for being here. I appreciate all your -MS. LINCOLN: Yeah, thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER KING: --explanation. And I also appreciate your concern, you know,
upfront about the legal position.
MS. LINCOLN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Your...thank you.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Thank you very much. So we have one, two, three, four,
five -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, wait. Hang on.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: --six, oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: I didn't see your light.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, thank you. Hi, Ms. Lincoln. Thank you. And yes,
you've come a long, long way and thank you for your due diligence. So, the only
question, I was looking for your contact information, that one-pager, not just the front
page of your app but the second. You did -MS. LINCOLN: I did submit that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --fill one out? Okay.
MS. LINCOLN: Yeah, I live in...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: It's not in this packet.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I don't have it.
MS. LINCOLN: I live at.. on...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I know where you live -MS. LINCOLN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --that's why I was like I don't see you here.
MS. LINCOLN: Yeah, yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I don't need to...yeah.
MS. LINCOLN: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But I...yeah. But thank you again -MS. LINCOLN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --for all your efforts and -MS. LINCOLN: All right. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --thanks for your time. But yeah, I don't.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah, hers was left out.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Next we have Rick Nava, then Kai Nishiki after that. Dylan Payne, Joe
Pluta, Leilani Pulmano and Leo Thiner-Brickey.
MR. NAVA: Good morning -CHAIR SUGIMURA: Good morning.
MR. NAVA: --Chair Sugimura, Committee Members. Good morning. My name is Rick Nava,
a resident of Lahaina for over 45 years. I reside on Kilauea Mauka III which is right
up on Lahainaluna Road. Also, I want to thank everyone here for the prayer when we
started the meeting. I'm a member of...I'm a veteran of 29 years, a member of the
411 Engineer Battalion which was deployed to Iraq because of 9/11. I was asked to
stay back here on Maui, because my fellow soldiers believed that I could take care of
the family as opposed to being there in Iraq which to them is just as important in
order for them to accomplish our mission. So, for 18 months, I stayed back here on
Maui taking care of families not only here on Maui but also on the Big Island, in
Guam, Oahu, and Kauai, and Molokai. So, that was an honor for me to be the, what
we call the rear detachment officer. As a resident of Lahaina since 1970, I have seen
the growth of Lahaina. Whenever a tree, especially a mango is cut down, even the
plumeria which is right across from my office is located, it is an indication that a
development is about to start. It saddens me to see that Lahaina has changed
tremendously from the days where I could actually ride my bike up and down the cane
field but those are all gone now. As most of us are concerned, our biggest problem in
Lahaina or challenge is of course affordable housing, affordable rentals, and our
infrastructure. I say that because as a business owner, it is getting more and more
difficult for me to find workers in Lahaina. Most of them live on this side of the island.
I don't know if you're aware of this, but Maui Tacos shut down about two weeks ago
because they couldn't find employees. And I'm also in the situation right now, not so
much as I can't find employees, but I had to basically increase everyone's pay to even
make them worth... make it worth it for them to drive to Lahaina. Earlier, one of the
testifiers or applicant was asked if there's something that we could do to improve
Lahaina right now. And, you know, Keawe Street, when I was president of the West
Maui Taxpayer Association, we knew that that was going to be a problem. As it is
right now it is dangerous. As you all know, when a car is coming down from the
bypass to Keawe Street and a pedestrian is walking across, most of the cars are not
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really looking at that pedestrian. I have seen a few times where actually people was
almost hit because they think it's a through road and they keep going and there you
are, a pedestrian. So, it's something I think that we need to take a look at as far as
installing pedestrian lights. Also, during the fire it was so chaotic, right up on
Lahainaluna Road, Kilauea Mauka III where there's only actually one exit for every car
that was coming out there to go to Lahainaluna Road and Lahainaluna Road was
actually on fire. So, again it is quite dangerous. But the other thing of course that I'd
like to share here today is that I can't remember actually when I sent my application,
if it was before I declared my candidacy or not. So, I don't know if that will be an
issue, because I'm still a candidate for the Councilmember for the West Maui. But
again, this is my commitment to Lahaina. I've served in many, many organizations in
Lahaina including the president of the Rotary Club of Lahaina on three different
occasion. Just recently the president of the West Maui Taxpayers Association where I
have to resign because of, you know, because of running for office. Also, the treasurer
of the Maui Chamber of Commerce and can't remember all of the organizations that
I'm involved. And of course as a business owner. One of the things that's always
asked is that, you know, will you have time, are you committed? I am committed, I
have the time I believe; otherwise, I would not have put in my application. What I feel
is important to me is that I... once I make my commitment that I do not spread myself
too thin. I also have a family, I have three grandchildren that I spend as much time as
I can with them. So, I am very good with my time management, but most of all, I'm,
you know, when I put my name to an organization or anything that I do, I make sure
that I deliver. So, that is a commitment that I've always been able to do so. So, again,
thank you for allowing me to present myself here today. So, if you have any questions
for me?
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Anyone have any questions for Rick Nava? Seeing none...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Well, no, I...Chair?
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Oh, you do?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah. I was going to ask you when it was you applied for it,
because, you know, you can't remember if you did it before or after...
MR. NAVA: Yes, I'm so sorry, Councilmember King. I am as I said, there were so many
things going on and again because of my commitment to helping Lahaina, I went on
ahead and filled out that application. In fact, when I received the call for this, there
was again, there's so many things, again, as it's happening, and fortunately with me
with again with time management and a good calendar system, I'm able to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. And then my other question 'cause I do think it's a conflict
of interest, you know, and you don't know what's going happen, but if you
didn't...would you be willing to be on a list of potential alternatives if you didn't get
elected? You know if we...
MR. NAVA: Of course, of course. That was going to be --
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COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah.
MR. NAVA: --my suggestion also. You know if I do, you know, depending -COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
MR. NAVA: --on what's going on, I would definitely love to become an alteinate if that ever,
you know -COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
MR. NAVA: --comes about.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. Thank you very much. Oh and just residency-wise, I don't
know where you live so is it like in Lahaina Town or...
MR. NAVA: It's right on Kilauea Mauka II which is right below the other one. Fortunately for
us when we evacuated, we do have another exit that goes through the Lahaina
Gateway, not just Lahainaluna Road. So, between Lahaina...the exit to Kahoma, the
new Kahoma Village Subdivision. So, I'm right below -COUNCILMEMBER KING: Oh, okay.
MR. NAVA: --the Princess Nahienaena School.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. Thank you. Thank you for coming.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair? I think...oh.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, thank you. Thank you, Mr. Nava, for being here. And
yeah, I was just...I guess maybe in reference to your application, if we got this received
on July 6, would it not have been pretty much received on that day?
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. So, July 6 is when we received your -MR. NAVA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --application. So, I think opening for enrollment or to
declare to run was back in what...
MR. NAVA: Actually, I did back in May so again like I said I don't recall, so.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, you had already declared -MR. NAVA: Declared, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --to run and then you...so this is several months after that
you had applied -MR. NAVA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --for this. Okay. So, you didn't think there's maybe a
conflict at that point?
MR. NAVA: Well, you know what, the other thing now that I'm thinking about it, there were
three of us. So, I know there was...I mean again, I did this...again, I can't remember
the day but there's also three of us not knowing what the result will be, and of course
my commitment to serving our community so I did that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And sorry, and a follow-up. And then you did just
mention in an answer to Ms. King that you got a phone call, so you were called to
apply?
MR. NAVA: A phone call to...no, a phone call for the September 11, I mean for today's
interview.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: To come to today's interview.
MR. NAVA: To this interview, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. I thought it was a phone call for...how did you hear
about this, the CPAC and applying for it?
MR. NAVA: It was in the paper, it was in the Lahaina News.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Thank you, Chair. Thank you for your time.
MR. NAVA: Thank you.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Nava. Next testifier is Kai Nishiki, Dylan
Payne, Joe Pluta, Leilani Pulmano.
MS. NISHIKI: Hi, good afternoon, Chair, Committee Members. I'm Kai Nishiki and I live in
Lahaina in Wahikuli. My kids attend Lahainaluna High School and a couple of things
that are important to me are the...to prioritize the needs of our residents in regards to
infrastructure, affordable housing, sea level rise, and an implementation plan for the
next disaster. Everyone on West Maui experienced the horrific fires and the ensuing
chaos in Lahaina Town, and I think there's a lot of us who would like the...for our area
to be better prepared. So, I'm here and available for questions.
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CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Anyone have questions for Ms. Nishiki? Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Just my regular, just if you can tell us what area you live in?
MS. NISHIKI: I live in Wahikuli.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Wahikuli. So, that's basically Lahaina Town?
MS. NISHIKI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. And I see your affiliation here. I'm not going to ask you
about your accessibility to the public, because I think everybody knows how to reach
you in Lahaina. So, I guess just can you tell us about your small business in relation
to your time availability?
MS. NISHIKI: Our family has a health food store on the West Side, and my availability for my
community service is very flexible so I'm very committed to serving my community in
whatever capacity is needed.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. No other questions? Miss...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Ms. Crivello?
VICE-CHAIR CRIVELLO: Aloha.
MS. NISHIKI: Good morning.
VICE-CHAIR CRIVELLO: Thank you for being here. Are you a lifelong resident of Lahaina?
MS. NISHIKI: I'm not.
VICE-CHAIR CRIVELLO: How long have you been in Lahaina or West Maui actually?
MS. NISHIKI: Approximately five to seven years I think.
VICE-CHAIR CRIVELLO: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, thank you. And thank you, Ms. Nishiki, for all your
efforts, not just here but in the community for sure, especially during emergencies and

- 49 -

POLICY, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, AND AGRICULTURE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

September 11, 2018

shoreline issues and on and on. And you have attended some of the West Maui we are
here... We Are Maui meetings? Been...
MS. NISHIKI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. Okay.
MS. NISHIKI: Yes, I've attended as many as possible. I've also been in communication
directly with the Planning Department, and I'm pretty familiar with the West Maui
Community Plan and what its objectives and goals are.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. All right, very good. Thank you so much for your
time and energy.
MS. NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: So, I have a quick question. Are you employed by any...are you a
Councilmember employee?
MS. NISHIKI: No, I'm not.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: She's not part of your Staff?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: She's not mine. No.
MS. NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Were you ever?
MS. NISHIKI: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No. She volunteers.
MS. NISHIKI: I'm a community volunteer -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Purely volunteers.
MS. NISHIKI: --working for our West Maui community.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Okay, thank you.
MS. NISHIKI: Yes.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Any other questions? None. Next is Dayne [sic] Payne please. I'm going
to lose quorum in 15 so I'm trying to get us past this. Joe Pluta and Leilani Pulmano.
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MR. PAYNE: Aloha. Thank you, Chair Sugimura, Committee Members. My name is Dylan
Payne.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Oh, Dylan Payne. Sorry.
MR. PAYNE: I applied for the CPAC. I grew up in Lahaina, I graduated from Lahainaluna
High School, and while I was attending college, I remember corning home for
Christmas one year and seeing all of the construction that was going on at North
Beach of Honua Kai and KOR and all that stuff and just thinking gosh, Maui in
general, West Maui specifically is going to change a lot in the future. And that kind of
prompted me to major in urban planning so that's my educational background. I
completed an internship with the Maui Planning Department as part of my education
with the Long Range Division. And moved home, got married, and had children. My
oldest started kindergarten at Kam III this year so that's fun. I love my community,
it's made me who I am. I'm an avid surfer and waterman and spend a lot of time in
the water so that's a priority of mine is making sure that those resources are protected
for my kids and grandkids. I plan on being here for the rest of my life. I'm a real
estate professional. My company West Maui Land recently in the past 12 months,
we've completed, constructed, and sold over 55 affordable homes, 25 of those were in
West Maui. So, I have intimate experience and knowledge with not only the process
and the planning process but also working with the buyers who in most cases were my
classmates and peers, and that has been incredibly fulfilling to me to see people who
thought they would never have a home in their hometown realize that dream. And my
goals with being on the CPAC would be to continue to do what we can to provide
affordable homes and also work on infrastructure and transportation issues. Thank
you.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Anyone have any questions for Dylan? Sorry about that.
MR. PAYNE: No problem.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Ms. King?
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Thank you for being here, and it's always nice to see folks from
the next generation stepping up to be involved. So, my only...I mean I see on your
thing it says Lahaina, Olowalu. Do you live like closer to Olowalu?
MR. PAYNE: I live in Olowalu.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Oh you do? Okay.
MR. PAYNE: I live right across from the Olowalu General Store.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Oh, great. Okay. Yeah, I'm just trying to get a good sense of the
entire West Maui so --
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MR. PAYNE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: --I think that's great that you are from that area. And then just,
can you just give a sense of your, outside your church group leadership, your...if you
have experience with community outreach and dealing with the public?
MR. PAYNE: I do, yeah. So, in the past, I served a two-year volunteer mission for my church
in the Netherlands and Belgium, and currently here in Lahaina I'm active in the
leadership of our ward which is kind of like a congregation or a parish in the Church
of Jesus Christ of Latter Day Saints. I serve as the ward clerk so I'm responsible for
all of the membership records and information and as well I oversee all of the finances
and the financial contributions to our congregation.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. Any experience with community outreach outside of the
church?
MR. PAYNE: I served an internship with the Planning Department.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Oh, okay.
MR. PAYNE: I...with the Long Range Division. I served on the board of my HOA when we
used to live up in Kahana at the Villas at Kahana Ridge. And I coached the Maui Prep
surf team for the past couple years but had to take a sabbatical 'cause we just had
baby number three.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
MR. PAYNE: So...
COUNCILMEMBER KING: And but you are going to have time for this?
MR. PAYNE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
MR. PAYNE: This is something I'm very passionate about -COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay.
MR. PAYNE: --and I'll make time for it.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay, great. Thank you.
MR. PAYNE: Yeah.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Ms. Cochran?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Good morning -MR. PAYNE: Hi, Elle.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --Dylan. Finally get to put...see you again. And I have seen
you at the Planning meetings that have been happening in West Maui and also have
been reaching out to you to try and set up a meeting, because you are with West Maui
Land whom had just purchased a bunch of acreage from Kaanapali Land
Management. So, one of my opening questions to our Corporation Counsel was in
essence your role that you play...not play but your role in the developer of all that
acreage and also in input to this plan. So, just want some comment. I think you were
sitting here when I asked that question. And it's been thought to have a conflict, you
know, possible conflict of sorts during the deliberations in your push and support for
particular urban growth boundaries perhaps or particular developments when you
actually are working for that developer in reference to, you know, the lands within
West Maui.
MR. PAYNE: Just a note of clarification, West Maui Land does not own that property. It's
owned by two entities, Wainee Land and Homes and also Hope Builders, just for
clarification's sake. I could see how some people might view that as a conflict, I don't.
I was not encouraged to do this by West Maui Land. I'm, like I said, a real estate
professional and an independent contractor. That said, I'm...and I'm very...Ms. King
has asked about communicating with the community, I feel like I do that really well.
I'm kind of open door, I'll talk to anybody but I'm also active on social media and I
think that's a great way to communicate with everybody. And I think the more input
that we have on this plan the better. I wish we had 1,800 applicants instead of just
the 15 that we have. So, I think that we should try to foster as much communication
as possible. To your question, Councilmember Cochran, I could see how some might
see that as a conflict but I don't. I'm a Lahaina boy first, a realtor second. I care
deeply about how our community evolves over time for the sake of my children and my
friends and I think that trumps anything else. And also I think it would be
presumptuous to think that me as 1 of 13 on the community plan advisory committee
would sway the conversation. As you know, once we make our recommendations, it
comes before you as a Council to make revisions. So, you also have the opportunity to
approve that. And beyond that, it's really just, it's by ordinance but it's kind of an
aspirational document. It's what we want to see and yeah, I hope I answered it -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And a -MR. PAYNE: --to your satisfaction.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --follow-up. Okay. And sorry, the, you said Hope Builders
and what was the other entity?
MR. PAYNE: Wainee Land and Homes.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And so as a CPAC member you work through and put all
these great, you know, thoughts on paper, create maps, and then you have a Council
that sits down and looks at this community plan but yet votes on change in, you
know, change in zonings, change in community plan boundary amendments, and
what have you for developments. Would that...how would that sit with you after you
had worked through and, you know, really gotten a...the voice of the community and
written and planned out this West Maui area, and a developer comes in and the
Council, you know, vets it through and votes to change the plan that was written by
this wonderful CPAC board?
MR. PAYNE: Yeah, I mean that's the democratic process, right? It has to go through
different layers and if that's what this body sees fit to do then I would respect and
uphold that. I...looking through the old community plan, you look at it and you say
this is a great document, there's a lot of things in here that were they applied, you
know, would be very beneficial to the community. So, I know that not all of those
things get implemented. The property that you asked about specifically is part of the
existing community plan, portions of it anyway. It's within the urban growth
boundary, the majority of it on the Maui Island Plan. So, I don't really see the need to
deviate from what the current community plan is in that area. If that's what you're
asking about I think. I, again, my goal, my objective in being here is just to try to help
my community that I care about, that I was raised in, that I want to see flourish over
the next 22 years before the next community plan update.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you, Dylan.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. So, we have Joe Pluta, Leilani Pulmano. I'm going to lose
quorum so if I could ask you to speak for two minutes and take questions, two
minutes, takes questions 'cause otherwise we're going to lose quorum and not hear
from you. So, Mr. Pluta, thank you very much for waiting. And thank you, Dylan.
MR. PLUTA: Good morning still. It's almost...Joe Pluta. I'm currently president of the West
Maui Taxpayers, founding board member of the... started the West Maui Taxpayers
39 years ago and been involved in all kinds of efforts in West Maui for the last
39 years. I live there in West Maui and currently in Wahikuli about two blocks from
the police station/post office there. And this is just part of what I do. I mean I'm
doing it now anyway. It's all synergized. I love to bring it all together to educate
people in the community, to get all their ideas together to see what they want, and
present that to the Council, to the Mayor, or to whoever, to do the best for our
community, and been doing that for 39 years.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you.
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MR. PLUTA: Questions?
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Anyone have questions for Mr. Pluta? I guess we all know
you.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah, we're all pretty familiar. But I just...
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Just, Chair, if I just...can you give me a little more specific on
where you live in...is it in Lahaina...
MR. PLUTA: Wahikuli, it's on Ainakea Road, two blocks from Ainakea Park, two blocks from
the police station/post office.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Yeah, I know Wahikuli so it's in Lahaina Town?
MR. PLUTA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KING: Okay. That's all. And I think that...I don't have any more
questions. I think I'm pretty familiar with your work. Thank you.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Pluta. Thank you for waiting.
MR. PLUTA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Mister...wait, hang on.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Oh, you have a question?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, Mr. Pluta. Sony, sorry. I thought...is Kaanapali
2020 still active and in...
MR. PLUTA: Yes, I've been meeting every month for the last 20 years, Kaanapali 2020.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Twenty, 20, 20, 20. Okay, thank you.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Thank you. Next is Leilani Pulmano. Is Leo Joseph
Thiner-Brickey here? I think I heard he is not here. Mister...okay. So, Leilani is the
last person.
MS. PULMANO: Good morning, Chair Sugimura -CHAIR SUGIMURA: Good morning.
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MS. PULMANO: --and Committee Members. My name is Leilani Pulmano and I would be
honored for your Committee's nomination to serve on this advisory committee. A little
bit about myself, I've lived in West Maui for 16 years and I reside in Kahana. I work in
real estate development. My background is planning and permitting. I currently sit
on the board of Hawaii Housing Finance Development Corporation. So, the reason
why I applied is that I believe that this process to be an important process. It sets the
tone and our future vision for West Maui. I've been involved in the Maui Island Plan
process and have attended several of the technical meetings leading up to this
Committee process. So, thank you very much for your time and thank you for having
this meeting today.
CHAIR SUGIMURA: Thank you. Thank you, Leilani. Anyone have questions for her? Thank
you. Thank you very much. So, I'm told that Leo Joseph Thiner-Brickey is not here.
Is that correct? Okay. So, Members, we have gone through all of the applications and
we are going to be losing quorum. Ms. Crivello agreed to stay until we heard the last
applicant. So, we heard from everybody, at this time I'm going to have to defer this
'cause we're not going to have enough time for decision making. But we do have
information from anybody...from everybody. Dylan, I forgot to ask you your political
affiliation so if you could tell us that later is fine 'cause that would be... and as also
you, Leilani. So, the two of you need to tell us your political affiliation for the reasons
given earlier. Anybody else have any questions regarding this? Okay, so I'm going to
schedule this at another time We have heard from everybody. Thank you very much
for your... spending your morning with us and we appreciate it. I'm going to defer this
to another meeting. Members, this meeting is now adjourned. . . .(gavel). . .
ACTION:

ADJOURN:

DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.

11:54 a.m.
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